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Heller & Bundenthal

All kinds of

Insurance

Automobile Insurance a Specialty

512 Reibold Building

BOTH PHONES

The Dayton
Stencil Works Co.

Steel Stamps—Rubber Stamps
Seals—Badges—Engravings

Stencils

115 E. SECOND ST.
Phone Main 1988 Dayton, Ohio

Bell 888 Home 8828

Frank C. Clemens

Successor to McDermott & Clemens

SANITARY
PLUMBING

Gas Fitting and Hot Water Heating
28 North Jefferson Street

Prompt Service—Estimates Cheerfully Given

HARRY SCHMITZ LOUIS RAUSCH
HOME PHONE 5666

The@ﬂakery

Bread and Fancy CaKes

1211 Xenia Avenue

HLE,

John T. Barlow Co.

Wholesale

DRY GOODS
and NOTIONS

Third and Sears Streets, Dayton, Ohio

Home Phone 2688 Bell East 2800

The Dayton Lumber and
Manufacturing Co.

LUMBER

LATH AND SHINGLES

Manufacturers of

Doors, Sash, Blinds and All Kinds of Mill Work

Get Good Shoes and You’ll Be Safe

You can’t save money on shoes, unless the shoes are good.
Even high prices on high quality would be better than low
prices on poor quality.

In Walk-Over Shoes you always get quality, plus dependable
leathers, service giving construction, solid comfort and good
styles.

ﬂ KEHM’S - c@
- WALK-OVER BOOT SHOP

39 S. Main Street Established 1863

THERE’S A CERTAIN FEELING OF

SATISFACTION

Felt by the users of Lowe Brothers High Standard Quality
Paint Products—they mean paints and varnishes that are
made as good as they can be made—they look better, last
longer and go further, which means in all, REAL PAINT

Economy. Your painting problems are ours.

IL.owe Brothers Paint Store

Main 58 110-112 East Third Street Home 6301

T HEDRINKCTRNATL HITS THE SPOT

oy Hinest Quality oan
= Blend A Coffee o~

THE JANSZEN GROCERY CO.

Bell Phone Main 832 S. E. Corner Second and Walnut Sts.
Connects all Departments 101 to 117 East Second Street

CINCINNATI, OHIO




Ready toServe You

with the lafest
furnishings for
Young Chaps

- MSilverman

s Hﬁﬂaryoﬁs
MA Flaherty

| MackRGilbert

e

¥ Cosmopolitan@
Lnmermarr 57 West Fifth St.

Dayton, Ohio

“FOR QUALITY AND SERVICE”

The H. Office & Bro. Co.

ESTABLISHED 189%

Receivers and

ceiversand - Fancy Fruits and Vegetables
Phones Bell Main 1655, Home 3695
SPECIAL ATTENTION TO OUT-OF-TOWN ORDERS
135-141 E. Fourth St. B. & O. Produce Yards DAYTON, OHIO

You will get the Real Effect
of Beauty if you Paint
your car with

EFFECTO

wvou pmint 1t us wire 116 POEPPELMEIER Co,
Cﬁ' 412-414-416-418 Wayne Ave.
Bell Phone 1620

State Theatre
Barber Shop

30 East Fourth St.

Hair Cutting or Bobbing, 35c.

Shaving, 15c.

First Class Service Seven Chairs
Geo. H. Meyer, Prop.

FISH

PO UL T RY

Sifferman’s

45 South Jefferson Street
DAYTON, OHIO

FELLOWS

For A-1 Service and Sanitation try

Harry’s
Barber Shop

206 S. Ludlow Street
Near Fifth

Shop Supplies

Micrometers, Screw Plates, Steel
Tapes, Ivory Rules, Tool Chests,
Hand Drills, Braces, Vises, Squares.
Everything in Tools, Machinery,

The Patterson Tool & Supply Go.

Both Phones 123-125 East Third Street

Buckeye
Barbers Supply Co.

Is the place to buy Razors, Strops,
Hair Tonie, Toilet \%atcrs, Perfumes,
Pocket Knives, Shears, Hair Brushes,
Combs, Etec.

CLARENCE S. WIGGIM

No. 214 East Third Street
Opp. Public Library



Bell Main 441
Bell Main 835

Home Phone 3441

“Red Wing”

Ice

Cream

THE RED WING
CORPORATION CO.

The W, L. Adamson Co.

WHOLESALE
GROCERS

444 East Third Street
DAYTON, OHIO

The HOMESTEAD

LOAN & SAVINGS ASS’N

“Safety First”

“Service Always”

ASSETS $3,000,000.00

6 ;O DIVIDENDS

ON SAVINGS
RESERVE FUND $175,000.00

“Save by Mail"—We solicit your inquiry

O F. D.AVISSON, Secresary : ELLIS J. FINKE, Ass’t Secretary
New Location—N. W. Corner Third and Jefferson—Dayton, Ohio

C. 0. ENGLER ALOIS MAYER

Dayton Monument Co.

OFFICE: 1072 BROWN STREET
WORKS: ALBERTA STREET AT C. L. & N. RAILROAD

Office Phone—Garfield 4138

EAT

Laurel Batter Crackers

BEST ON EARTH
Manufactured only by

THE DAYTON BISCUIT COMPANY
BEWARE OF IMITATIONS

H. F. PAFF
A. W. PAGENSTECHER

Paff &

Pagenstecher

Importers and Jobbers of

China, Glass and
Kitchen Ware

Always the best and newest
for the price

Our Specialty Practical Dinner Ware

Phone Garfield 849

115 S. Jefterson Street DAYTON, OHIO

ASK FOR

OLT’S

FILTERED, PASTEURIZED

MILK and CREAM

BUTTERMILK, BUTTER and COTTAGE CHEESE
At All Grocers

OLT’S SODAS

Made with
POLAR DISTILLED WATER

Olt’s Wurzburger Beverage

Olt’s Swimming Pool now open—9 a. m. to 10 p. m.

24 McGEE STREET
East 1045 Phones East 1046




137 South Main Street

What we do claim—

We don’t claim to make the most pictures, nor to
be the only photographer, but we do claim that
our work stands in the front line and that our
patrons are well pleased with the results.

Don TWallace Studio

Main 940

e s e G

e e v e e .

Bell Phone, Main 989

DR. F. S. KELLER
Dentist

4-5-6 Lyric Theatre Building

Home Phone 13617

A. C. Giambrone

WHOLESALE
FRUITS

Bell Phone East 2472

112 COMMERCIAL STREET

South End Pharmacy

DRUGS

CIGARS—SODAS
FILMS

CORNER BROWN AND WOODLAND AVE.

5 and 7 Arcade, Third St.

PARK YOUR HEAD UNDER A

Cody’s Town Talk Hat

Dayton’s Only Exclusive Hatter

A Schoolhouse in a Factory

The National Cash Register Company
and its employees have never ceased
to go forward because they have
never stopped going to school. In
our Schoolhouse we study the needs
of those who buy our product. We
learn how to build machines that will
answer these needs.

We offer our workers many oppor-
tunities in our Schoolhouse to learn
and to advance themselves.

Our Schoolhouse has a seating capa-
city of 2,500. a fully equipped stage.
one of the largest pipe organs in the
country, and the most improved ap-
paratus for showing motion pictures.
When in Dayton, visit The N.C.R.

THE NATIONAL CASH REGISTER CO., Dayton, Ohio

Offices in all the principal cities of the world

Bell Main 1429 Home 4839

Albert Pretzinger
Edw. P. Musselman

ARCHITECTS

1125-28, 1138-39 Reibold Building
DAYTON, OHIO

Robert Colburn

THE POPULAR

Barber

Union Avenue and Brown Street

Our beautiful funeral home is
placed at the disposal of those we
serve without charge.

Westbrock
Funeral Home

1712 South Wayne Ave.
Garfield 1072—PHONES—East 2075
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YES—There is a big difference in MEATS WITH

INSIST ON THE QUALITY PRODUCTS The OhiO

THE WM. FOCKE’S SONS €0, | " "™ ™

BEST BY TEST InsuranCe

Kettle Rendered Lard, Beef 3rd Floor Realty Bldg.
Veal and Hotel Cuts, High
Grade Sausages, Mild-Cured
Hams and Bacon.

WE SOLICIT YOUR PATRONAGE

BALL'S

1004-1006 E. Fifth St. East Springfield Street

BRANCH PackinG House C ﬁ NDY

SMITH BROTHERS Is used by the
Studio of Fine Portraiture 1k ot D: 200

OUR NEW STUDIO IS ONE OF
THE BEST APPOINTED IN OHIO

16 EasT FOURTH STREET DayTon, OHIio

Bell Main 5536 Home Phone 454C
GARFIELD 409

ALBERT A. VAUBEL

only one
Furnaces :

SLATE; IRON, TIN and COMPOSITION ROOFING F. G. MEYER

REPAIRS FOR ALL MAKES OF FURNACES
SPOUTING and SHEET METAL WORK JEWELER

Repairing of All Kinds a Specialty 14 West Fifth Street

242 Oak Street Dayton, Ohio
Agent for

Gruen Watches

“THE LUCKY DOG KIND” OF
Sporting Goods

Pleases the Athletes at the University
of Dayton. No better Goods Made.
Send for Catalog A full line of Watches, Clocks,

Diamonds, Silverware
The Draper-Maynard Co. il e s
PLYMOUTH, N. H.

3 : FINE WATCH REPAIRING
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To the Good Father

T is something more than a privilege, and scarcely describable as

a pleasure alone, to devote and dedicate this issue of The Expo-

nent to the Very Rev. Ernest Joseph Sorret, S. M., Superior-
General of the Society of Mary and a man amongst men.

During the late spring and summer months we were signally hon-

ored by having as our guest on several occasions The Good Father
and, we must add, it is a distinct disappointment, presently, that his

plans carry him farther west, into California, the Hawaiian Islands,
Japan and—home to Europe, rather than have him as our guest of
honor through the weeks to follow.

The Good Father has seen and heard much but has said very lit-
tle while on this, his first visit to America. On his mind, though, is
retained, indelibly no doubt, many things which will be duly pondered
over and treated individually. In the months to come The Good
Father has many decisions to reach anent as many serious problems.
His American tour will aid him considerably—and aid us, too!

And so the editors of The Exponent, feeling that dedicating this
issue to Father Sorret is something more than a privilege and scarce-
ly describable as a pleasure alone, wish to have it understood that
they deem it a duty, a pleasant duty, not only to devote these pages
to such a distinguished Priest and Man, but a duty as well for stu-
dents to study the man, Father Sorret, and keep him ever before their

minds as a true example of what a Student and a Christian should be.

—V.P. Y.
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A Sketch of the Society of Mary

By Vincent Koepnick, S. M.

HE years that brought to a close the eigh-

I teenth century and ushered in the nine-

teenth, were indeed, years of bloodshed, de-
struction and cruel religious persecution in France.
The French Revolution at that time was raging
with all its fury and threatening to destroy in a
comparatively short time all that was sacred to a
Christian and God-loving people. To pronounce
“the name of the Creator was considered an act of
madness, and all but incurred the penalty of death.
Priests and religious were exiled from sunny
France, the first daughter of the Church, and were
compelled to take up their abode in distant and un-
known lands. From such a period it would seem
that no possible good could come. Yet Almighty
God in His unfathomable providnece deigned to
plant the seed of much future good within these
troublesome years, and made use of the Revolution’s
policy of exile to bring about the establishment of
one of His religious orders.

Father William Joseph Chaminade, a pious and
zealous priest, lived within the very midst of this
violent upheaval which shook his native country to
its foundations. Seeing nothing but bloodshed, in-
justice, lack of faith and persecution going on
around him, he labored with all his power to min-
ister unto his little faithful flock at Bordeaux in
order that their faith might not be weakened or lost
to them entirely. However, a knowledge of his la-
bors soon came to the leaders of the Revolution and
a warrant for his arrest was issued. From then on
he was forced to conceal his identity and where-
abouts. During the lull of revolutionary activities
in 1795 he enjoyed a short but much needed respite.
Nevertheless he did not remain entirely inactive
during this lull, but undertook the mission of recon-
ciling the priests who were so unfortunate as to
have taken the schismatical oath.

When in 1797 the “Terror” broke out anew
Father Chaminade’s name was still on the list of
those destined for exile. Hence to save his life he
elected to leave the shores of his native country.
Father Chaminade had always been, even from his
early youth, a true devotee of the Virgin Mary and
always in his holy ministry, he endeavored to in-
flame the hearts of those with whom he came in
contact with a filial devotion towards her. Doubt-

" less it was she who inspired him, when going into

exile, to embark for Spain. At Saragossa the
Blessed Virgin is especially honored under the title
of “Our Lady of the Pillar,” a magnificent shrine
being dedicated to her there under that name.

Thither were his steps led by his heavenly Queen
on October 11th, 1797, the eve of her great feast.
The pious exile received hospitality in a very fer-
vent convent nearby the shrine. Many hours of
each day he spent in prayer at the feet of
Our Lady of the Pillar, begging her to raise up
apostolic missioners who should restore once more
his beloved country to its former faith. In one of
these pious communications with his spiritual
Mother he was inspired by her to found the Society
that bears her glorious name. Thus the French
Revolution was productive of some good, for it led
to Father Chaminade’s exile to Saragossa where he
was inspired from on high to establish the Society
of Mary.

In after years the holy priest, while addressing
his religious firmly avowed: “Such as I see you
before me today, such I saw you long before the
foundation of the Society.” Doubtless he referred
to the spiritual communicatién given him at Sara-
gossa.

After his return from Spain Father Chaminade
made Bordeaux the center of his activities. He es-
tablished the Miséricorde, a house of refuge for re-
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VERY REVEREND EMIL JOSEPH SORRET, S. M.
Superior General of the Society of Mary

pentant girls, and a young men’s sodality. This so-
dality was the seed from which the Society of Mary
sprung. Five of the most zealous sodalists ex-
pressed to their beloved Father the wish of joining
him in the establishment of his proposed religious
society. After five months of reflection and a re-
treat, the Society of Mary came into existence on
the 2nd of October, 1817. T'wo months later on the
11th of December, the members or novices made
their first temporary profession of vows.

After the Society’s establishment it undertook the
following works: sodalities, secondary instruction,
primary instruction, normal schools and manual
training institutes.

St. Mary’s Institute, as the first boarding school
was called, was built at Bordeaux, in 1820, and pros-
pered very rapidly. Four years later the large
Municipal School of Colmar was founded in Alsace.
The works of the Society then spread throughout
France with great rapidity, establishments being
opened in St. Remy (1824), the department of the
Doubs (1824), Besangon (1827), and Ecole.

The Marianist Founder then toured Alsace.
Many ecclesiastical officials urged him to open up
schools in that section.- As a result of this visita-

tion the College of St. Hippolyte and the primary
schools of Ammerschwir and of Ribeauvillé were
opened in Alsace.

In 1826 the Brothers took charge of the following
schools in Franche Comté: College of Gray, The
Normal School of Courtefontaine, The Agricultural
and Professional School of St. Remy, and the
Boarding School and Farm of Morast.

Although the Society of Mary enjoyed great suc-
cess as far as expansion was concerned, yet it was
torn, during these early years, by bitter internal
trials. Father Chaminade had worked many years
at the Constitutions of the Society, and when he
finally submitted them to the examination of the
principal members, they were rejected as a whole
and criticized in every detail. The dispositions of
some of the members were so bitter, that one of
them interrupted and contradicted the saintly Foun-
der in a public conference given to all the Brothers
and novices at Bordeaux.

The Revolution of 1830 was another heavy cross
upon the shoulders of Father Chaminade. It caused
the two novitiates to be closed and brought about
the total ruin of the Normal Schools.

Further internal troubles arising the unfortun-
ate condition of the Society at this time immedi-
ately becomes manifest.

Amidst all these severe misfortunes and trials
Father Chaminade remained calm and unruffled.
He was a man of deeply rooted faith and naturally
turned towards his Creator and Blessed Mother for
aid. He never fretted or complained of his cross
nor did he manifest any hostile attitude towards
those opposed to him. Absolute resignation to
God’s holy will sums up his dispositions, not only
at this period, but throughout his long and labori-
ous life. Heroic indeed are the virtues that stand
the test of such trials, and truly they merit for their
possessor the appellation of saint.

The clouds that overshadowed the Society of
Mary began to pass away, when in 1834 the first
book of the Constitutions, after having been thor-
oughly revised, was accepted by the religious. The
Revolution subsided and the novitiates were again
opened.

The first establishment undertaken by the Soci-
ety outside the borders of France was a perfect suc-
cess. Notwithstanding the opposition of the Radi-
cals of Berne, a school had been opened at Fribourg,
Switzerland. The time now came for the saintly
founder of the Marianists to enter into his eternal
reward. He died in consequence of a stroke of
apoplexy, January 22, 1850, in the most saintly dis-
positions. In 1845 the last year of Father Cham-
inade’s generalship (he had been succeeded at that
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time by Father Caillet) the Society numbered 250
religious and 35 establishments.

During the generalship of Father Caillet the So-
ciety of Mary became more universal in its work.
As early as 1849 the Marianists secured a founda-
tion in the United States. Upon the request of
Father Wenniger S. J., a missionary, and of Rev.
Father Hammer, a parish priest of Cincinnati, the
superiors bought a large property near Dayton,
Ohio, and built there the Mother House of the Am-
erican Province.

The Society enjoyed great success during the
generalship of Father Caillet. The number of re-
ligious increased from 250 to 1,000, and the num-
ber of houses had grown from 36 to 126 extending
over 32 dioceses. More internal troubles arose at
this time. Some of the members desired that the
Society be separated into two societies, the one lay,
and the other clerical. To settle the difficulty Rome
sent an Apostolic Visitor to each establishment of
the Order. This Apostolic Visitor questioned each
religious concerning the separation. Over six-sev-
enths of the religious preferred that the Society con-
tinue as it had been founded, that is, composed of
clerical and lay members. A General Chapter was
held in which it was decided that no separation
should take place. This decision was confirmed by
Rome.

Father Caillet died on August 18, 1874, after a
generalship of twenty-three years.

The third Superior General destined by Provi-
dence to guide the Marianists was Father Chevaux.
The period during which he was in office was one
of quiet except during the war of 1870-1871. As a
result of this war the Society lost two houses in
Alsace,—the house of formation of Ebersmuenster
and the College of St. Hoppolyte. In all about nine
thousand pupils were deprived of the instruction
of the Brothers.

During Father Chevaux’s administration Father
Simler, Chief of the Department of Instruction,
made a visitation of the American Province then
numbering twenty-three houses. Father Chevaux,
the third Superior General of the Society of Mary.
died in 1875 on December 27, the very evening of
the feast of St. John, his patron. He was succeeded
by Father Simler.

Every young religious order or institute makes
efforts to have its constitutions approved of by
Rome as soon after its foundation as possible. For
until such approbation of the constitutions is re-
ceived, it is not officially recognized by the authori-
ties of Rome. The Society of Mary received this
signal favor from the Holy Father on July 10, 1891,
the fifteenth year of Father Simler’s generalship.

At the conclusion of his term of office the Soci-
etv numbered 168 establishments, and of these, 79

REVEREND BROTHER MICHAEL SCHLEICH, S. M.
General Superintendent of Schools, Society of Mary

were opened during his administration. Previous
to Father Simler’s being chosen Superior General
the Society of Mary had spread to Switzerland
(1839), to the United States (1849), to Germany
(1851), to Austria (1857), and to Belgium (1874).
During his guardianship of the sons of Father
Chaminade, the Society extended to many new re-
gions and established beyond doubt the universality
of its mission.

Divine Providence guided the Brothers to Can-
ada in 1880, and the first school was opened at Win-
nipeg. One year after the Society was established
in the cold clime of the Dominion, the Brothers
opened up schools and undertook missionary labors
in the hot and tropical land of Africa. At Tripoli,
Ifax, Tunis and Souse the Marianists devotedly
spent themselves in the cause of Christ, bringing
many of the negro race into the fold of the divine
Shepherd.

The Hawaiian Islands became the next field for
the apostolate of the Brothers when schools were
taken charge of at Honolulu (1883), Wailuku
(1883), and Hilo (1885).

On one of Father Simler’s visits to Pope Leo
XIII, His Holiness requested that the Society of
Mary take charge of a school in Rome. Conse-
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quently a College was founded in the Holy City in
1887.

Spain, the cherished land of Our Lady of the Pil-
lar, where the Blessed Virgin deigned to inspire
Father Chaminade with the idea of founding the
Society of Mary, next received the Brothers. Father
Chaminade had entertained the idea of establishing
the Society in that country in 1830, but the Revo-
lution which broke out at that time hindered him
from carrying out his design. Father Simler was
destined to realize this project at the earnest solici-
tations of several distinguished personages among
whom was the Queen Regent. St. Sebastian was
founded in 1887, Jeres in 1888, Vitoria in 1889,
Cadiz in 1892, Escoriaza in 1895 and Madrid in 1905.
The Province of Spain was formed in 1895.

Acting upon the special request of the Ecclesias-
tical authorities at Rome, the Society decided to
send a band of its members to the far eastern land
of Japan. The “Society of Foreign Missions” like-
wise desired most earnestly that the Brothers of
Mary undertake educational work among the Jap-
anese people. The missionaries were convinced
that the Japanese, eager for learning, had to be won
over to Christ by that bait. The Society of Mary
was able to obtain the wished-for results since it
contained men rich in science and at the same time
strong in faith. The initial expenses in Japan
reached the enormous sum of one million francs.
The pecuniary outlay however was abundantly
compensated for by the spiritual advantages of the
enterprise; for the Japanese missions contributed
largely towards drawing from Heaven blessings
upon the Society, and stimulated the zeal of the
religious, thus preventing laxity. The first Marian-
ist school in Japan was opened at Tokio in 1887.
Schools at Nagasaki in 1892, Osaka in 1898, and
Yokohama in 1901, were placed under the care of
the Brothers. The hardships and trials endured by
the pioneers in Japan were of the severest nature.
Their wonderful faith and confidence in Mary how-
ever supported them and enabled them to make a
success of the enterprise.

The Society spread to Luxembourg in 1899 when
the Agricultural School at Givenich was opened.

In response to an appeal from Bishop Von Anzer
of the Society of the Divine Word, missionaries
were sent to Yen-tschu-fu, China, in 1903.

A cruel persecution against religious orders be-
gan in France in 1903. This necessitated the going
abroad of many of the Brothers. Simultaneously
with the persecution came several requests from
Mexico, asking the Brothers to take charge of
schools there. Hence the Society gladly accepted

the offers since the state of affairs in France ren-
dered a number of religious available. T'he Broth-

ers went to Durango in 1904 and to Hermosillo in

1905. These schools were later abandoned on ac-
count of the unjust religious persecution which ac-
companied the Mexican Revolution of 1914.

Thus it will be seen that during the twenty-nine
years of Father Simler’s generalship the Society ex-
panded to practically all parts of the world. How-
ever the second part of his term of office was sad-
dened by the persecution in France. This great
trial, humanly speaking, ruined the Society in the
country where it was born. Religious were exiled,
the possessions of the Society were confiscated, the
material resources and the influx of candidates were
reduced to practically nothing. But here again, by
a merciful intervention of Mary, Divine Providence
made the ordeal turn to the advantage of the Soci-
ety. Though the persecution led to the loss of the
Society’s houses in France, it brought about the
strengthening of the Society in various other coun-
tries and made possible the meritorious work of the
missions. The persecution likewise brought about
a purification of the Society, which was relieved of
the lax members who were a mere encumbrance.
The Society itself would never have undertaken
such a drastic purification, no matter how necessary
it would have become. As in 1830, the persecution
was, to use Father Chaminade’s own words, the
“sieve” and the “fan” that God made use of to sepa-
rate the chaff from the wheat.

During the gloomiest days of the trial Father
Simler remained confident that Mary would protect
the Society and enable it to come triumphant out of
the bitter ordeal. His confidence was indeed not
misplaced as a subsequent history of the Society
proves, for although driven from France, the So-
ciety prospered and was especially blessed in other
countries. Father Simler’s long generalship came
to a close with his calm and peaceful death in 1905.
He was succeeded by Father Joseph Hiss, the fifth
Superior General of the Society.

Heretofore the Society had developed externally
under the various Superior Generals, but now the
Society was to enter upon a long period of internal
development and perfection under the able leader-
ship of Father Hiss. Upon entering his new office
Father Hiss immediately set about raising the stan-
dard of education imparted by the Brothers. His
mission it was to see that the members of the Soci-
ety were skillfully trained in the various sciences
they taught. And it is to his untiring efforts that
the Society is indebted for the splendid reputation
it has as a teaching order. Throughout the seven-
teen years he was in office, he always aimed at giv-
ing the Society’s professors the most thorough
training possible, and as a result he raised the
schools taught by the Brothers to such a degree of
efficiency that they are renowned for the knowledge
they impart and the high moral sense they instill.
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Father Hiss, one of the most beloved Generals of
the Society, died in July, 1922. A General Chapter
was held in December of the same year which re-
sulted in the election of Father Joseph Sorret to
the Superior Generalship.

Father Sorret favored the American Province
with a prolonged visitation this year. The object of
the visit was to acquaint himself with the works
and needs of the American Province, and to encour-
age the Brothers in the wonderful work they are
doing in this country. At present he is in Califor-
nia but will soon leave for the Hawaiian Islands

and Japan. He will return to Belgium some time
towards the close of the year.

From this humble little sketch of the Society of
Mary it will be noted that severe trials and perse-
cutions have assailed the order from time to time,
but it will likewise be perceived that Mary and her
divine Son have watched over it and protected it
in all its crises. Though men from without have
tried to crush it, and members from within have
endeavored to destroy it, yet it still remains, proof
indeed, that it is no mere human institution but a
divine one, supported by the grace of God.

Society of Mary in America

By James E. Donnelly, S. M.

the Society of Mary, was made in 1849, dur-
ing the lifetime of Rev. Father Chaminade,
by one of his favorite disciples, the Reverend Leo
Meyer. The call of the Society of Mary to the Uni-
ted States, came in an indirect and unsought-for
manner, such as befits those who continue the lab-
ors of the unknown and forgotten Divine Teacher
of men. In April, 1849, came the first definite re-
quest from America for our Brothers, though the
preceding year had been marked by many more or
less tempting invitations for the Brothers to labor
in this country. Father Wenninger, a missionary
of the Society of Jesus, stationed at St. Xavier’s
College, Cincinnati, applied to the Superiors of the
Society in FEurope, in behalf of the pastor of Holy
Trinity Church, Cincinnati, for Brothers of Mary to
assume the conduct of the parish-school.
Accordingly Father Leo Meyer, accompanied by
Brother Charles Schulty was commissioned to lay
the foundations of the Society’s first American es-
tablishment.
Ieaving Havre at the end of May, these first mes-
sengers of Mary Immaculate, set foot on American

THE foundation of the American Province of

soil on the morning of the fourth of July, 1849, when
the city of New York was noisily celebrating the
anniversary of the Nation’s Birthday. Without
much delay, the zealous pioneers set out for their
future mission in the Queen City of the West. A
slow and tedious journey of eleven days brought
them to their destination only to find the city in
the grasp of the deadly cholera epidemic then rag-
ing all over the south of Ohio. Under these condi-
tions it was impossible to open a school. Father

Meyer placed himself at the disposal of the Bishop
of Cincinnati, Right Rev. John B. Purcell.

German-speaking priests were at that time great-
ly needed by the Cincinnati diocese and because
Father Meyer was thoroughly conversant with the
German tongue, the Rev. Bishop appointed him to
assist the pastor of Emmanuel Church, Dayton,
then a town of about sixteen thousand inhabitants.

At the end of July, 1849, when he had been hard-
ly two weeks in the country, he met Mr. John
Stuart in Dayton. The latter, a good Catholic gen-
tleman, and a direct descendant of the royal Scotch
family, was the owner of a property of 125 acres to
the southeast of Dayton on the Lebanon road. He
was anxious to return to France where he had large
property interests and he offered to sell his entire
Dayton estate to Father Meyer. The offer was ac-
cepted by Father Meyer on the authorization of the
Superior-General of the Society, and for the sum of
$12,000 the present property of the University of
Dayton was acquired. The name of the estate was
changed from that of the “Stuart Mansion” to that
of “Nazareth.”

The preparations for the Society’s new venture
were now well-nigh complete. Father Meyer felt
the need for a larger number to continue the work
and to fulfill and satisfy the demands that other
American pastors were making for Brothers in
America. He wrote on August the tenth for four
Brothers.

In December, 1849, Brothers Andrew Edel, John
B. Stinzi, Maximin Zehler and Damian Litz arrived
in Cincinnati. FEach of these Brothers, as events
showed, were eminently fitted to perform the ardu-
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ous tasks that must fall to the lot of pioneers in
any undertaking. They assisted Father Meyer ad-
mirably in his difficult work. Brother Edel was
commissioned to labor in Texas when the Society
was invited to take charge of the schools in San
Antonio, Texas. His keen eye for locality and rare
judgment of land led him to select the present site
of St. Mary’s College, now the leading educational
institution in Texas. Bro. John B. Stinzi founded
and directed many parish schools during the first
twenty years and later served as Inspector of the
Schools of the Province for seventeen long years.
Bro. Maximin Zehler, the best known of the quar-
tet of pioneers, spent all his energies in directing
and advancing the interests of the Mother House.
The present prosperity and excellent financial
standing of the University of Dayton are due in no
small measure to this Brother’s practical business
acumen and executive ability. Bro. Damian Litz,
is characterized as the “pioneer among the pio-
neers.” He was a literateur of exceptional talent,
and in his day contributed regularly to many daily
journals. He is distinguished for the wide exten-
sion he gave to the educational work of the Society
in America. For thirty years he was sent from
coast to coast organizing and consolidating schools
and establishments of the Society.

The recountal of the lives of these brave pioneer
Brothers would be a history of the Society’s work
in America for a period of fifty years, but for the
purpose of brevity we must continue the story in a
more general way.

The establishment at Nazareth grew and ex-
panded under the direction of Father Meyer and
Brother Zehler, who in turn were aided by the
Providence of God and the protection of Heaven’s
Immaculate Queen. On July 1, 1850, a boarding
school was opened, in charge of Brother Zehler and
Father Byron, a secular priest delegated by Bishop
Purcell to assist the Brothers in their work. For
six years the school made but doubtful progress.
But these years were the prelude to the growth of
the institute. They were the “darkness before the
dawn.” By 1854 the number of boarders at the
school was fifty-four. In the spring of that year
an additional building was erected through the gen-
erous assistance of Mr. Henry Ferneding, the So-
ciety’s first benefactor, in a material way, in Day-
ton.

The progress of the school’s growth received a
severe check when, in the night of December 26
and 27, 1855, fire destroyed the Stuart Mansion and
the newly completed annex. The disaster nearly
overwhelmed the struggling institution, but with
courage and reliance on God, Father Meyer sus-
tained the loss. The blessing behind this sad epi-
sode came in the introduction of the Brothers to

the city of Cleveland where some members of the
former community of Nazareth were sent to teach.
The Bishop of Cleveland, Rt. Rev. Amadeus Rappe,
befriended the Brothers and became one of their
staunchest friends and patrons.

In the meantime the foundation of St. Mary’s
College in San Antonio, Texas, was having its trou-
bles and difficulties. Founded in 1852 by Brother
Edel the school devoted itself chiefly to the Mexi-
can element of the population, with the result that
little progress and no substantial material success
was attained. With the growing years, however,
the French elenient among the Brothers of the com-
munity began to assert itself, so that, the influential
French colonists were attracted to the school. Un-
til 1861 the College grew steadily but the sad events
of the Civil War cast their shadow over the institu-
tion. With the close of the war prosperity returned
to the city and in like maasure to the College. The
original institution proved too small for the increas-
ing attendance. Additional structures were built
until the College stands as it is today. St. Mary’s
College is now a leading institution in the State.

The boarding school at Dayton was rebuilt and
ready for use in September, 1857. With the ap-
pointment of Brother Zehler as director a period of
material prosperity set in which continued unbroken
during his term of office. In 1861 the Society as-
sumed charge of a school in Rochester, at the parish
of St. Joseph’s. The cities of Cincinnati, Dayton,
Cleveland and Rochester, together with the distant
San Antonio were the only ones in which Society
had establishments during Father Meyer’s admin-
istration.

Reverend John Courtes was appointed to succeed
Father Meyer as Provincial of the American Prov-
ince. His administration lasted but two years. He
was a prudent, zealous man but an insuperable ob-
stacle checked any possible success in his new of-
fice. He could speak only French and was thus
shut off completely from any personal contact with
the majority of his subjects who were either Ger-
man or English. Upon his earnest solicitations to
the General Administration, Rev. John Nepomucene
Reinbolt was nominated Superior of the American
Province.

The appointment of Father Reinbolt to this im-
portant post, was of far-reaching consequence in
the history of the Society in America. He was a
man of great learning, considerable experience and
of remarkable adaptability. His personality and
spirit, his enterprise and enthusiasm, dominated
every undertaking and inspired his followers with
new zeal and courage. The new Provincial, had
been employed in various schools of the Society in
France. It was from the Chair of Philosophy in
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the College of St. Hippolite, Alsace, that he was
promoted to the provincialate in America.

Just as Brother Zehler had been the counsellor
and guide of Father Leo Meyer and Father John
Courtes, so Father Reinbolt found him an invalu-
able assistant and trustworthy advisor. The first
years of Father Reinbolt’s administration were
marked by a great expansion of the Mother House
house and the St. Mary’s College. It has been
styled the period of “brick and mortar.” The prin-
cipal buildings erected were the present chapel dedi-
cated to the Immaculate Conception, and costing
upwards of $40,000, and the present St. Mary’s
Hall which then represented the cost of $85,000.
At that time, this same hall was accounted the larg-
est building in Dayton. It was part of the city
exhibit, so to say. In 1874 the present Gymnasium
was built.

In 1875, when Rev. Father Joseph Simler came
to the United States in the capacity of Visitor for
the Province, he found all the works enjoying con-
siderable prosperity. Despite the difficulty of trav-
elling in those days, the future Superior-General
paid a personal visit to each establishment, from
New York to Texas. In all, the number of estab-
lishments was 23 and of Brothers 200. The impor-
tant position of Inspector of Schools was in the
hands of Brother John B. Stinzi—a man thoroughly
capable of fulfilling this burdensome office.

New schools were opened in Baltimore, New Or-
leans, Chicago and New York. Such had been the
growth of the Society in America under the guid-
ance of Father Reinbolt that it was enabled to ex-
tend its influence and establish missions of its own.
Thus in 1880 a foundation was made at Winnipeg,
Canada. At present Saint Jean Baptiste School in
that city is one of the most flourishing institutions
in the charge of the Brothers. A house was estab-
lished at Honolulu in the Hawaiian Islands in 1883
and at Stockton, California, in 1884.

The foundation in Hawaii was unusually success-
ful. From year to year it was improved and ex-
panded until the present St. Louis College was
evolved. In things educational the College is ever
to the fore among the schools of the Islands. The
schools of the Society in Hawaii are in the charge
of Brothers from the United States who have vol-
unteered to undertake the work in the true mission-
ary spirit and with real apostolic zeal.

At the very height of the wave of prosperity that
the Society enjoyed at this time, there occurred the
most terrifying disaster that ever afflicted the
Mother House at Nazareth. On Monday, Decem-
ber 10, 1883, the Normal School and Novitiate were
entirely destroyed by fire. The loss was estimated
at $80,000. For a short period, dismay and fear

checked any attempt at reconstruction, but through

the ministrations of the ever-kind Providence, the
advent of spring found preparations for rebuilding
well under way. The completed structure, called
St. Joseph’s Hall, has effectually attested the genius
and capabilities of its designer, Brother Joseph
Sennety.

In 1886 the Very Reverend Landelin Beck suc-
ceeded Father Reinbolt as Provincial and Brother
John B. Kim relieved the enfeebled Brother Stinzi
of the Provincial Inspectorship. The new Superior
brought to his work the experience of ten years’
provincialate in France. He enjoyed the most com-
petent assistance of Brother Kim and together with
him widened and increased the Society’s sphere of
influence throughout the United States, in Canada
and the Hawaiian Islands. In 1905 the Reverend
Provincial was deprived of the services of Brother
Kim who, in recognition of his merits and abilities,
was elected to the office of Inspector General of all
the schools of the Society. He thus became the
first American member of the General Administra-
tion. The Rev. Brother Michael Schleich, suc-
ceeded Brother Kim in the office of Provincial In-
spector and is now discharging the important office
of Inspector General assumed after the death of
Brother Kim in 1909. During Father Beck’s term
of office, new establishments were opened in Wash-
ington, D. C., San Francisco and Louisville, Ky.
The College in San Antonio, Texas, was recently
enlarged in order to accommodate the greatly aug-
mented student body.

After a long term of ten years’ service as the
guide of the American Province Father Beck con-
fidently entrusted the leadership to Father George
Meyer.

The former American provincial returned to
France in 1901 and was appointed Provincial of the
largest French province—Franche-Comté. The year
1913, however, marked his appointment as Chap-
lain of an agricultural school, taken charge of by
the Society, at Rutherford, California. The duties
of active life soon became too difficult for his fail-
ing health and after a few years he retired to the
peaceful solitude of Mt. St. John where he contin-
ues by prayer and good works to aid his dear So-
ciety.

Under the leadership of Rev. George Meyer the
American Province continued its onward progress to-
wards material prosperity and professional perfection.
Foundations and new schools were opened at St.
Louis, Brooklyn, Peoria, San Jose, Cal., Dyersville,
Towa, Belleville, Ill.,, and St. Boniface, Manitoba.
The training of candidates was given more serious
attention and efforts were made to increase the
efficiency of the Society’s educational methods.

For twenty years Father Meyer had lived at
Nazareth in the capacity of President of the Col-
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lege and Superior of the Normal School. The valu-
able experience he thus acquired was used to the
greatest advantage in his new office. The attend-
ance of the College at Dayton increased steadily,
and in 1904, Chaminade Hall was erected in order
to accommodate the needs of the students. The
class of 1904 perpetuated its name and added to
the beauty of the College grounds by the erection
of the lofty monument of the Immaculate Concep-
tion which overlooks the entrance to the College.

Rev. Joseph Weckesser received the appointment
of Provincial in 1906. Brother Michael Schleich
held the position of Provincial Inspector. During
this administration three new foundations were
made; one at Dubuque, lowa, one at Victoria,
Texas, and one at Hamilton, Ohio. In 1908 the
growth of the Province reached such proportions
that it was deemed advisable to form two dis-
tinct provinces. How would it have cheered the
hearts of Father LLeo Meyer and the pioneer Broth-
ers in America could they have foreseen the meas-
ure of success, that Providence and the Society’s
Immaculate Protectress, had bestowed upon their
work. But they had labored in the encouraging
light of Faith. They relied on Heaven and their re-
liance was not misplaced nor was it unrewarded.
Truly they had builded better than they knew.

The Rev. Father Weckesser and Brother John A.
Waldron were appointed superiors of the newly
created St. Louis Province with headquarters at
St. Louis. The Rev. George Meyer was then re-
appointed provincial of the Cincinnati Province
with headquarters at Dayton. Brother Michael
Schleich continued as Inspector in the Cincinnati
Province. A Novitiate at Ferguson, Missouri, and
Chaminade College, near Clayton, Missouri, were
the first institutions erected in the new province.

Thus reorganized the Society in America
stretched forward towards greater achievements
in the work of the apostolate. Brother George N.
Sauer became the successor of Brother Michael
Schleich who relinquished the duties of Provincial
Inspector to become Inspector General and mem-
ber of the Society’s General Administration in Bel-
gium. The College in Dayton was entirely inade-
quate to meet the demands made by the large en-
rollment. Hence it was decided to remove the
Normal Department and Novitiate of the Society
from Nazareth, and to use the building for College
purposes alone.

The result was the erection of the beautiful struc-
ture of the Mt. St. John Normal School situated
four miles east of Dayton on a spot that is said to
be the highest elevation in the county. Ever since
the foundation of this establishment in 1915, the
succeeding years have seen it increase in beauty
and in usefulness. At this house and the adjoining

Novitiate the candidates of the Society are educated
and trained to proficiency in the duties of religious
life and in the art of teaching. From its precincts
each year a small band of trained religious teachers
go forth to labor in the Lord’s Vineyard. But in
these days of materialism and industrialism the cry
of Our Saviour—*“The harvest indeed is great but
the laborers are few”—takes on an added signifi-
cance, and we must pray all the more fervently
“the Lord of the harvest, that He send laborers into
His Vineyard.”

In 1918, the Superiors of the Western Province
erected a new Novitiate at Maryhurst, Mo., to re-
place the institution at Ferguson, Mo., which had
been destroyed by fire. A Normal School, similar
to the structure at Mt. St. John, was erected on
this property in 1923. During that same year an
extensive property was purchased at Santa Cruz,
California. This site will furnish the basis of
a future house of studies for the Society, in the
West.

During these later years the Brothers have de-
voted more and more attention to the direction of
High Schools, without however slighting the work
in elementary and parish schools to which the So-
ciety has consistently devoted its energies. In 1916

two schools, the West Philadelphia Catholic High
School and the Cathedral Latin School were en-

trusted to the Society. Both institutions have
grown apace and have shown remarkable develop-
ment. In 1923 an annex to the West Philadelphia
Catholic High School was placed under construc-
tion. It includes a gymnasium and auditorium, the
latter with a seating capacity of 1200 persons. The
attendance of the school will approximate 1200
students.

The Rev. George Meyer, after a service of twenty
years as Provincial, was succeeded in this office by
Rev. Bernard P. O'Reilly in 1918. Father Meyer
passed out of office with the esteem and respect of
all the Brothers who had labored under his direc-
tion. He was appointed Master of Novices and
since that time has performed zealously and unos-
tentatiously the all-important duties of that office.
The Brothers who have received their initiation and
training in Religious Life at his hands, are unani-
mous in their gratitude and appreciation of his fath-
erly care.

During Father O’Reilly’s administration the Col-
lege at Dayton continued under the Presidency of
Father Joseph Tetzlaff to prosper and develop as it
had done under the guidance of Father O’Reilly, its
former President. The school was reorganized and
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